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JONATHAN E. 
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one or more ofthe Corporate Defendants; and 
JOSEPH CIFF A, individually and as an officer 
of one or more of the Corporate Defendants, 

Defendants. 

Plaintiffs, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), by and through its counsel, and The 

People ofthe State ofNew York ("State ofNew York"), by and through its counsel and Attorney 

General, for their Complaint allege: 

1. The FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) ofthe Federal Trade Commission 

Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and Section 814 ofthe Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

("FDCPA"), 15 U.S.C. § 1692/, to obtain te.46 666 Tm
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the federal law claims in this 

action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), and 1692/. 

Subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court with respect to the supplemental state 

law claims ofthe State ofNew York by 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

4. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 (b)(l), (b)(2), (c)(l), 

(c)(2), and (d), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). 

PLAINTIFFS 

5. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by 

statute. 15 U.S.C. §§ 41-58. The FTC enforces Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), 

which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC also 

enforces the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p, which prohibits abusive, aeceptive, and unfair 

debt collection practices. The FTC may initiate federal district court proceedings by its own 

attorneys to enjoin violations of 
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(iii) illegal debt collection practices under GBL § 602, and to obtain legal, equitable or other 

appropriate relief including rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the appointment of 

a receiver, disgorgenient of ill-gotten monies, or other relief as may be appropriate. 

DEFENDANTS 

7. Defendant Vantage Point Services, LLC is a New York limited liability 

company that has held itself out as doing business at addresses including 4248 Ridge Lea Road, 

Suite 45, Amherst, New York 14228. At times material to this Complaint, Vantage Point 

Services has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

8. Defendant Payment Management Solutions, Inc. is a New York corporation 

that has held itself out as doing business at addresses including 4248 Ridge Lea Road, Suite 45, 

Amherst, New York 14228 and 10235 Lockport Road, Niagara Falls, New York 14304. At 

times material to this Complaint, Payment Management Solutions has transacted business in this 

district and throughout the United States. 

9. Defendant Bonified Payment Solutions, Inc. is a New York corporation that has 

held itself out as doing business at addresses including I 0235 Lockport Road, Niagara Falls, 

New York 14304. At times material to this Complaint, Bonified Payment Solutions has 

transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

I 0. . Defendant Gregory "Greg" MacKinnon, is or has been a principal of Vantage 

Point Services. He also is or has been a signatory to the bank account of Vantage Point Services, 

and has held himself out as an officer, director, and owner of the company. At times material to 

this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, 

had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices set forth in this Complaint. 
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district and, in connection with the matters alleged herein, transacts or has transacted business in 

this district and throughout the United States. 
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COMMERCE 

16. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial 

course of trade in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 

15 u.s.c. § 44. 
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27. Defendants' 
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30. In many instances, Defendants have claimed that consumers will be sued if a debt 

is not paid. But, in truth and in fact, in many in.stances Defendants have lacked the authority or 

intention to file lawsuits against consumers. 

Defendants' Unlawful Disclosure oflnformation to Third Parties 

31. In numerous instances, Defendants have contacted third parties, including 

putative debtors' friends, family members, and co-workers. In many instances, Defendants 

disclose information about a purported debt to these third parties. 

32. In some instances, Defendant have told third parties that putative debtors have 

committed a crime, an arrest warrant wiii be issued against the putative debtor, and the putative 

debtor will be imprisoned unless they call Defendants back. For example, the brother of a 

putative debtor received a voicemail in which Defendants claimed to be a "legal processing firm" 

that had been "retained through the State of California" to notify the putative debtor about "two 

pending felony fraud charges and a pending felony warrant." 

Defendants Fail to Provide Statutorily-Required Notices and Disclosures 

33. In numerous instances, Defendants have failed to provide consumers with basic 

information---including the Defendants' business name, that the call was an attempt to collect a 

debt, and that any information provided by the consumer would be used to collect a debt--during 

collection calls. 

34. In numerous instances, Defendants also have failed to provide consumers within 

five days after the initial communication with a statutorily-required written notice--where the 

information was not contained in the initial communication and the consumer had not paid the 

debt--setting forth: (1) the amount of the debt; (2) the name of the creditor to whom the debt is 

owed; (3) a statement that unless the consumer disputes the debt, the debt will be assumed valid; 
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and (4) a statement that if the consumer disputes all or part of the debt in writing within 30 



Case 1:15-cv-00006-WMS Document 1 Filed 01/05/15 Page 13 of 22 

c. Defendants are affiliated with the government. 

40. In truth and in fact: 
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attachment of a person's property or wages, when such 
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Count V by Plaintiff FTC 

Unauthorized Charges 

51. In numerous instances, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants 

have collected fees that are not "expressly authorized by the agreement creating the debt or 

permitted by I.aw," in violation ofSection 808(1) ofthe FDCPA, I5 U.S.C. § 1692f(I). 

Count VI by Plaintiff FTC 

Failure To Provide A Validation Notice 

52. In numerous instances, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants 

have failed to provide consumeFs, either in the initial communication with a consumer or in a 

written notice sent within five days after the initial communication, with statutorily-required 

infonnation about the debt and the right to dispute the debt in violation of Section 809(a) of the 

FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a). 

VIOLATIONS OF NEW YORK STATE LAW 

Fraudulent and Deceptive Acts or Practices 

53. In numerous instances, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants, 

directly or indirectly, have used false, deceptive. or misleading representations or means, 

including, but not limited to: 

a. Falsely representing the 
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c. Threatening to take action that is not lawful or that Defendants do not 

intend to take, such as filing a lawsuit; 

d. Falsely representing or implying that a consumer has committed any crime 

or other unlawful conduct; and 

e. Using a false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to 
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CONSUMER INJURY 

59. Consumers have suffered and will continue to suffer substantial injury as a result 

ofDefendants' violations ofthe FTC Act, the FDCPA, N.Y. Executive Law§ 63(12), and N.Y. 

General Business Law Articles 22-A and 29-H. In addition, Defendants have been unjustly 

enriched as a result of their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive relief by this Court, 

Defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the 

public interest. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

60. Section 13(b) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and Section 814(a) ofthe 

FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692/(a), empower this Court to grant injunctive and such other relief as 

the Court may deem appropriate to halt and Business9 0 Tde 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs FTC and the State ofNew York, pursuant to Section 13(b) of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), Section 814(a) ofthe FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692/(a), N.Y. 

Executive Law§ 63(12), and N.Y. General Business Law§§ 349, 350-d and 602(2), and the 

Court's own equitable powers, request that the Court: 

A. Award Plaintiffs such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as may be 

necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to 

preserve the possibility of effective final relief, including but not limited to, temporary and 

preliminary injunctions, an order freezing assets, immediate access to business premises, and 

appointment of a receiver; 

B. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations ofthe FTC Act, the 

FDCPA, N.Y. General Business Law Articles 22-A and 29-H and Executive Law§ 63(12), by 

Defendants; 

C. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers 

resulting from Defendants' violations ofthe FTC Act, the FDCPA, N.Y. General Business Law 

Articles 22-A and 29-H and Executive Law§ 63(12), including but not limited to, rescission or 

reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, and disgorgement of i 11-gotten 

monies; 

D. Pursuant to N.Y. General Business Law § 350-d, impose a civil penalty of$5,000 
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Dated: January 5, 2015 

JONATHAN E. NUECHTERLEIN 
General Counsel 
Federal Trade Commission 

"CTf}d:zc 
JASON ADLER 
PETER LAMBERTON 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
Telephone: (202) 326-3376 (Hector) 
Telephone: (202) 326-3231 (Adler) 
Telephone: (202) 326-3274 


